

Board of Directors Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Special Meeting Minutes December 19th, 2023 9:00 am

Present:

Directors:

Donn Etherington, Director Jim Huffman, Director JC Baldwin, Director

Staff:

Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer Monica Lough, Dir. of Finance & Admin. Trent Moyers, Director of Airports Stacie de Mestre, Dir. of Econ. Dev. Sarah Deenik, Comm. Coordinator Brooke Lammert, Executive Assistant W. Alan Loebsack, Director Mark Spurgeon, Director Richard DeRock, Director

Ron Russ, Maint. and Prop. Manager (Zoom) Colby Goodrich, FBO Manager (Zoom) Laura Camarillo-Reyes, Admin. Asst. (Zoom) Julie Avis, Acct. Specialist (Zoom) Lorena Amador, Acct. Specialist (Zoom)

Legal Counsel:

Quentin Batjer, Davis Arneil Law Firm LLP

Guests:

Jack Penning, Volaire Aviation Craig Larsen, NCW Economic Development District Mike Mackey, Douglas County Citizen Jason Taylor, KPQ (Zoom) Emily Thornton, Wenatchee World (Zoom)

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board Meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.

Introductions were made.

Conflicts of Interest: None.

PUBLIC COMMENTS: An opportunity for public comment was provided; however, no public comments were received.

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY CONSENT AGENDA:

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of the November 28th, 2023 Meeting Minutes, Calendar of Events, and Check Register Pages #2023-47 through #2023-49, including Electronic Transfers was presented.

<i>Motion No.</i> Moved by: Seconded by:	12-01-23 CDRPA JC Baldwin W. Alan Loebsack To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of the November 28 th , 2023 Meeting Minutes, Calendar of Events and Check Register Pages #2023-47 through #2023-49, including Electronic Transfers
	Electronic Transfers.

Motion Passed 6-0

PRESENTATION:

• Jack Penning – Volaire Aviation: Jack Penning, Volaire Aviation consultant, delivered a market update on regional air service. He believes the Wenatchee market will eventually be served by larger aircraft. Also, Minimum Revenue Guarantees (MRGs) requested by the airlines are likely to remain for smaller markets like Wenatchee.

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY ACTION ITEMS:

Resolution No. 2023-14 Managing Authority 2024

Kuntz and de Mestre reviewed with the Board the suggested changes to the 2024 Delegation of Authority. The following actions were taken:

Motion No.	12-02-23 CDRPA
Moved by:	JC Baldwin
Seconded by:	Jim Huffman
	To adopt CDRPA Resolution No. 2023-14 concerning the CEO Delegation
	of Authority for 2024.

Motion Passed 6-0

Resolution No. 2023-15 Approving the 2024 Investment Policy

Lough communicated that the CDRPA investment consultants reviewed and had no recommended changes in the year 2024. The following action was taken:

Motion No. Moved by: Seconded by: **12-03-23 CDRPA** Richard DeRock JC Baldwin To adopt CDRPA Resolution No. 2023-15 approving the 2024 Investment Policy.

Motion Passed 6-0

Ownership Allocation Memo – Lytle Property

Kuntz presented an Ownership Allocation Memo recommending 100% ownership of the Lytle property (Phase II acquisition of approximately 4.76 acres) near Pangborn Memorial Airport by the CDRPA. The following action was taken:

Motion No.	12-04-23 CDRPA
Moved by:	Donn Etherington
Seconded by:	JC Baldwin
	To approve the Ownership Allocation Memo concerning the Lytle property acquisition near Pangborn Memorial Airport.

Motion Passed 6-0

Ownership Allocation Memo – Adcock Property

Kuntz presented a proposed Ownership Allocation Memo recommending the 100% ownership of the Adcock property by the Port of Chelan County. The following action was taken:

Motion No.	12-05-23 CDRPA
Moved by:	Donn Etherington
Seconded by:	Richard DeRock
	To approve the Ownership Allocation Memo concerning the Adcock property acquisition in Malaga.

Motion Passed 6-0

Bill of Sale to Malaga Water District - Phase I Improvements

de Mestre reviewed with the Board the status of the project and the Interlocal Agreement in place with the Malaga Water District. de Mestre noted that there is a contingency in the agreement requiring the water main to pass a purity test prior to the Port transferring ownership of the new water system improvements. Discussion occurred and the following action was taken:

Motion No.	12-06-23 CDRPA
Moved by:	Richard DeRock
Seconded by:	Donn Etherington
	To authorize the CEO to sign and deliver a Bill of Sale deeding over water infrastructure improvements to the Malaga Water District per the Interlocal Agreement contingent upon the water main passing purity testing.
	Motion Passed 6-0

RH2 Engineering – Task Authorization 17 – Malaga Water System Improvements de Mestre informed the Board that the long-term pump test for Test Well #1 took place in November and yielded favorable results. Subsequently, RH2 Engineering has recommended converting the test well into a production well. Staff is seeking approval to authorize Task Authorization 17, specifically Phase 1c.

Motion No.	12-07-23 CDRPA
Moved by:	Richard DeRock
Seconded by:	W. Alan Loebsack
	To authorize the CEO to sign RH2 Engineering Tast Authorization 17 – Phase 1c for Local Water System Improvements in Malaga, with a budget not to exceed \$838,393.

Motion Passed 6-0

Authorization to Enter into a Lease Agreement with CMI – CTC Third Floor

Kuntz reviewed the general terms of the lease and discussed the intention to hire Bernardo Wills, the firm responsible for the CDRPA's office design, to design the buildout of the third floor. The following action was taken:

Motion No.	12-08-23 CDRPA
Moved by:	Richard DeRock
Seconded by:	JC Baldwin
	To authorize the CEO to enter into a Lease Agreement with CMI Orchards
	for the third floor of the Confluence Technology Center, subject to the
	basic business terms remaining unchanged.
	Mation Decend C. O.

Motion Passed 6-0

Proposed 2024 Legal Counsel Hourly Rates

Kuntz presented a proposed 3.9% hourly rate increase for Regional Port Legal Counsel work from \$310 to \$322 per hour in 2024. Additionally, Kuntz addressed the payment of hourly legal fees when covered by private businesses collaborating with the Regional Port through Reimbursement Agreements. Kuntz suggested Port legal counsel should be able to charge their standard private hourly rates if a reimbursement agreement is in place. Discussion occurred and the following action was taken:

> Motion No. Moved by: Seconded by:

12-09-23 CDRPA Richard DeRock W. Alan Loebsack To approve increasing the hourly rate for legal services from \$310 per hour to \$322 per hour commencing January 1, 2024.

Motion Passed 6-0

Motion No. Moved by: Seconded by:

Motion No.

Moved by: Seconded by:

12-10-23 CDRPA Jim Huffman JC Baldwin To authorize the CEO to approve legal counsel to charge private sector legal rates in circumstances where the Regional Port has a Reimbursement Agreement in place with a private business,

Motion Passed 6-0

Authorization to Award Contract – CWICC Carpet Replacement

Russ reviewed the Central Washington Interagency Communications Center Lease Agreement, which stipulates the replacement of the carpet every ten years. Standard Paint and Flooring are being recommended for the project as they are the apparent lowest bidder. The following action was taken:

> **12-11-23** Jim Huffman W. Alan Loebsack To authorize the CEO to award and sign the contract with Standard Paint and Flooring for the CWICC carpet replacement in the amount of \$56,004.27, including Washington State Sales Tax, and to establish an overall project budget of \$65,000.

Motion Passed 6-0

At 10:41 a.m. Commissioner Spurgeon called for a 10-minute break.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

Microsoft Reimbursement Agreement – Addendum 2 – de Mestre reviewed Addendum 2 to the Microsoft Water System Reimbursement Agreement and noted the new line item within the budget containing a CDRPA admin fee.

Test Well #1 Long Term Pump Test Technical Memo – de Mestre previously mentioned the successful pump test conducted at test well #1, but further reviewed the more detailed technical memo provided by the RH2 Engineering firm.

Memorandum of Agreement – General Aviation Terminal Building – Moyers reviewed the Environmental Assessment Memorandum of Agreement with the FAA concerning the proposed remodel of the GA Terminal Building. Once approved by FAA legal counsel, the project will proceed to the public comment phase.

MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS:

Kuntz provided information and updates including:

- Shared details about the WPPA 2023 Annual Meeting, along with meetings held concerning TIF Districts and Strategic Planning.
- Updated the Board on staffing changes resulting from Craig Larsen's transition to the Executive Director role at the NCW Economic Development District. Kuntz shared that Brooke Lammert will assume the position of Economic Development Specialist, and efforts are underway to recruit a new Executive Assistant. Additionally, Sarah Deenik will assume a more prominent role in the Accounting Department.

Lough provided information and updates including:

- Discussed the Exit Conference held by the State Auditor for the CDRPA, encompassing fiscal years 2021-22. The Regional Port received a clean audit report.

Moyers provided information and updates including:

- Provided the Board with an update on the recent public workshop held for the Environmental Assessment concerning the Chelan Airport Master Plan.
- Reviewed the ongoing status of the land release request with the FAA. At present, staff are awaiting a response regarding the property around Union Avenue. Additionally, the land release process has been initiated for the National Guard property.
- Presented the Board with live footage from the airport cameras and mentioned that, at present, the live stream is not accessible to the public.

de Mestre provided information and updates including:

- Provided the Board with an update on the Regional Sports Complex Feasibility Study and discussed the revised timeline for Phase II. Phase II is scheduled to commence in January 2024, with the final report expected in June 2024.
- Discussed a conditional use water reservoir in Malaga and highlighted a discrepancy found in tank sizing. Engineers are currently working on a revision, and as a result, the project will be reopened for public comment.

 Shared information about a potential funding opportunity for the General Aviation Terminal Building through a Department of Commerce grant. De Mestre highlighted that if the grant is awarded, the allocated funds must be utilized by June 2024.

Russ provided information and updates including:

- Updated the Board on leaks discovered within the Executive Flight Building's fire sprinkler system, necessitating the replacement of a section of piping. The final design for the complete replacement of the fire sprinkler system is nearing completion, accompanied by a construction phasing plan to avoid disrupting the scheduled move-in of the Washington State National Guard. CDRPA staff is slated to vacate the building by March 1, 2024.

PUBLIC COMMENTS: An opportunity for public comment was provided. No public comments were received.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Executive Session was announced at 11:48 a.m. for a period of thirty minutes with no action anticipated at the conclusion of the session. The purpose consisted of RCW 42.30.110(1)(b) to consider the acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price and RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public employee. Executive Session was extended at 12:33 p.m. for an additional twenty minutes. Executive Session was extended at 12:53 p.m. for an additional ten minutes and again at 1:03 p.m. for an additional ten minutes. Executive Session concluded at 1:13 p.m.

Meeting reconvened in Regular Session with no action taken and immediately adjourned at 1:14 p.m.

Signed and dated this 9th day of January 2024.

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY

Donn Etherington, Director

Richard DeRock, Director

Baldwin, JC Director

W. Alan Loebsack. Director

Mark Spurgeon, Director

12 Jan

Jim Nuffman, Director

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY RESOLUTION NO. 2023-14

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY CALENDAR YEAR 2024

Whereas, RCW 53.12.270 authorizes the Commission to delegate administrative powers and duties to the Executive Director, and

Whereas, the Port Commissions of both the Port of Chelan County and the Port of Douglas County have in the past adopted policy directives delegating administrative authority to its respective Executive Director for the purpose of expeditious administration of the Ports, and

Whereas, both Port Commissions have from time to time found it necessary to amend and revise such directives due to changes in law and/or operations, and

Whereas, both Port Commissions shall, from time to time, employ a Director of Finance and Administration, who shall act as the managing official of the Port in the absence of the Executive Director, and

Whereas, on June 11, 2019 both the Port of Douglas County and the Port of Chelan County entered into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for the functional consolidation of Port Finances, Management and Operations, and

Whereas, the functionally consolidated organization was named the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority ('Port Authority'), with both Port Commissions combining into one governing body, the Board of Directors, consisting of three commissioners from the Port of Chelan County and three commissioners from the Port of Douglas County, and

Whereas, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority will use RCW 53.12.270 in similar fashion to delegate administrative powers and duties to the Chief Executive Officer, and

Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority now wishes to provide a master policy directive on the delegated administrative powers and duties of the Chief Executive Officer, or in the absence of the Chief Executive Officer, to the Director of Finance,

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority as follows:

Section 1. The master policy directive of the Board of Directors, as set forth herein, is adopted for the purpose of establishing the delegated administrative powers and duties of the Chief Executive Officer and the Director of Finance and Administration. This policy directive will remain in effect until December 31, 2024, unless it is extended prior to that date.

Section 2. All portions of resolutions, policies or motions heretofore approved by the Board of Directors pertaining to the subject matters contained in this resolution are hereby repealed.

Section 3. The Revised Code of Washington 53.08.090 authorizes Board of Directors to delegate to the Chief Executive Officer, by resolution, the authority to sell and convey port district property with a value of \$10,000 or less. State law requires that this authority be renewed by resolution annually by the Board of Directors. Said authority is hereby authorized by the adoption of this resolution. See Section 4, Article XVIII.

<u>Section</u> 4. The following policy directive on the delegated administrative powers and duties of the Chief Executive Officer and the Director of Finance and Administration is hereby adopted:

I. <u>PREAMBLE</u>

- A. The following policy is adopted by the Board of Directors for the purpose of establishing the administrative powers and duties of the Chief Executive Officer who is responsible for Port Authority operations. Any Board directives or initiatives shall be implemented through the Chief Executive Officer and shall be made only by the Board acting as a body of the whole at a public meeting. The Chief Executive Officer may delegate to Port personnel such administrative authority or reporting requirements herein established as is necessary and advisable in the efficient exercise of the Chief Executive Officer's powers and duties. The Chief Executive Officer shall insure that these staff members clearly understand the limits on the Chief Executive Officer and their authority.
- Β. The phrase "administration and Port Authority operations", as used herein, means the regular day-to-day business of the Port Authority, including but not limited to: operating, maintaining, and administering all of its properties, leasehold properties, facilities services and programs, including the implementation of construction work, alterations, repairs, maintenance, and improvements of the Port Authority's real estate and physical facilities, and the necessary planning incidental thereto; the conduct of financial accounting and legal matters as they relate to the Port Authority's operation; the administration of all other operations which include personnel administration (i.e., hiring, firing, wages and benefits, training, grievance procedures, and task and project assignments, etc.); the execution and administration of contracts; publishing legal notices; and all other pertinent authorized functions. As it pertains to personnel administration, the Chief Executive Officer's implementation shall be consistent with the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Personnel Policies as adopted by the Board of Directors on September 10th, 2019, as may be amended.
- C. The Chief Executive Officer shall inform the Board regarding significant information, incidents, and business transactions by methods agreeable to the Board. The Chief Executive Officer shall report to the Board those actions made in reliance on this delegation. The Chief Executive Officer, or in the absence of the Chief Executive Officer, the Director of Finance and

Administration, is the managing official of the Port Authority, appointed by the Board, and holds office as their representative. Nothing herein should be construed in any way as abrogating the duties and the responsibilities of the Board.

II. <u>FINANCIAL</u>

- A. <u>Budgets</u> The adoption of Port Authority budgets, including supplemental budgets, are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. The Chief Executive Officer has no authority to adopt budgets, but the Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for submitting to the Board of Directors proposed budgets, together with all necessary supporting data. The Chief Executive Officer shall also be responsible to ensure all legal notices are placed in newspapers regarding budget hearings and adoptions.
- B. <u>Expenditures</u> The Chief Executive Officer is given the authority to spend Port Authority funds without prior Board approval subject to:
 - 1. The expenditure must fall within a budgeted expense category.
 - 2. The expenditure must not cause the amount of a budgeted expense category to be exceeded.
 - 3. Expenditures in accord with Emergency Public Works Contracts.
 - 4. Any applicable financial limits established by this Resolution.
- C. <u>Management of Port Authority Finances</u> The Chief Executive Officer or the Director of Finance and Administration is authorized to transfer funds between operating funds and investment funds to meet Port Authority financial obligations.
- D. <u>Imprest Working Funds (Petty Cash/Change Funds)</u> The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to establish imprest working funds (petty cash/change funds), provided that the total cumulative amount of all such funds does not exceed \$2,000.
- E. <u>Banking Services</u> The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to negotiate for banking services and enter into agreements for such services. Procedures shall be established concerning the deposit/disbursal of Port Authority funds recognizing the requirements cited in RCW 53.36.010 and providing for an adequate system of internal control.
- F. <u>Investments</u> The investment of Port Authority funds, which are those funds not required for immediate expenditures, shall be invested by the Port Authority Treasurer, in accordance with applicable laws relating to investment of public funds and consistent with Board approved Investment Policies. The Chief Executive Officer shall be authorized to determine the amount of funds to be invested in order to ensure adequate cash flow to meet Port Authority obligations.
- G. <u>Other Obligations</u> The Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority to incur obligations and make commitments on behalf of the Port Authority, so long as they are for budgeted items, except, the Chief Executive Officer:

- 1. May not issue promissory notes.
- 2. May not issue bonds.
- 3. May not incur obligations or make commitments in excess of those amounts specifically provided for elsewhere in this resolution.

III. POLICY GOVERNING REAL PROPERTY

- A. <u>Types of Agreements</u> The following directives apply to all agreements for use of Port Authority real property, including but not limited to leases, license agreements, concession agreements, rental agreements, operating agreements, memorandums of understanding and use agreements.
- B. <u>Lease Arrangements</u> All real property, when available for leasing, shall be leased only under an appropriate written instrument approved by the Board of Directors. Except where the Board has delegated authority to the Chief Executive Officer here in Section 4, III, prior to the execution of such instrument, the Chief Executive Officer shall have secured the approval of the Board, provided for proper security, submitted the Agreement to Port Authority Counsel for approval (if the Port Authority's standard agreement form is not used) and follow all other applicable laws.
- C. <u>Chief Executive Officer's Authority to Sign Lease and Rental Agreements</u> <u>without Prior Board Approval</u> – The Chief Executive Officer may, without prior Board approval, execute lease and rental agreements subject to all of the following conditions:
 - 1. Agreements having a term (including any options) of five years duration or less and lease payments of \$5,000 per month or less (not including state leasehold tax) and the Port Authority's financial obligation for building improvements does not exceed \$50,000.
 - 2. The Port Authority's standard agreement form is used, except for provisions not applicable and state and federal leases that require the use of the tenant's lease form as long as the content of the lease form does not materially change the Port Authority's intent in its standard lease form.
 - 3. The appropriate lease surety must be in place which shall be defined as a minimum of one month's rental, not including state leasehold tax.
 - 4. The amount of rent shall be in accordance with rental rate objectives of the Board.
 - 5. The use to which the property may be put by the tenant shall be expressly stated and shall be in accordance with the goals, directives, and policies adopted by the Board for the same or similar Port Authority property or properties.
 - 6. The Chief Executive Officer shall provide the Board with a monthly written report of all agreements executed.
- D. <u>Lease Modifications; Extensions</u> The Chief Executive Officer may, without prior Board approval, make minor modification to existing leases including payment deferrals, due dates for payments, adjustments to the leased premises, and the like, where the increase or decrease in annual revenue projected to be generated does not exceed \$50,000. The Chief Executive

Officer may, without prior Board approval, grant an extension of the current term of an existing lease for a period not greater than six (6) months. The Chief Executive Officer shall advise the Board of any such action within a reasonable period of time, not later than the next regular Board meeting.

- E. <u>Sublease Procedures</u> Leases, concession agreements, operating agreements, and related contracts between the Port Authority and its tenants, and other parties shall include restriction on the subleasing and require at a minimum the prior written consent of the Port Authority to such subleases. Subject to the provisions of the lease or agreement, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to grant consents to subleases, which for the purposes hereof shall include suboperating agreements and subconcession agreements.
- F. <u>Lease Renewals</u> The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to renew leases provided: such renewals are provided for in the current lease; all other substantive terms of the lease remain unchanged; rental adjustments provided for in the lease are made; and the lease is in good standing. The Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority in Section 4, Article III(D) to make modifications to a lease as part of a lease renewal.
- G. <u>Lease Enforcement and Lease Terminations</u> The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to enforce all terms and conditions of Port Authority leases. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to issue all appropriate notices of default and/or notices of termination with regard to Port Authority leases. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to terminate any lease under the terms and conditions therein. Upon termination, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to take all steps necessary to retake possession of the leasehold and recover for the Port Authority all sums due the Port Authority pursuant to the lease and the law. The Chief Executive Officer shall keep the Board informed with respect to lessees that are issued default notices or termination notices.
- H. <u>Realtors Compensation Program</u> The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to make payments for real estate services consistent with the Board of Directors adopted Real Estate Guidelines per Motion #09-10-19 as may be amended.
- I. <u>Other Documents</u> The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute the following instruments, subject to the terms specified herein:
 - 1. Temporary and permanent easements for purposes of utility installments only. For easements granted by the Port Authority, all easements will require the grantee at its own expense to relocate, lower or otherwise protect the utility to accommodate future development of the Port Authority, its agents, or assigns unless otherwise authorized and directed by the Board.
 - 2. Business Licenses and Licenses to Operate.
 - 3. If the Board has previously approved a grant application, the Chief Executive Officer may execute all related agreements associated with the Port Authority obtaining local, state or federal grant funds, unless

said grant exceeds \$1.5 million, which shall require Board approval prior to acceptance.

- 4. Binding site plans, short plats, building permits, and similar documents, and applications therefore, consistent with Port Authority master plans or otherwise where the Board has approved the subject development.
- 5. Changes in name of responsible party to the lease if all other conditions including primary ownership, remain the same.
- 6. Lease assignments for purposes of collateral.
- 7. Estoppels, attornments and non-disturbance agreements.
- 8. Permits ancillary to the normal operation of the Port Authority.
- 9. Liquor Control Board forms related to tenants leasing Port Authority property.
- 10. Landlord Waiver and Consent agreements subject to legal counsel review.
- 11. Assignments of agreements for use of Port Authority real property (as defined in Section 4, III. A above) where the assignment does not alter the underlying terms of the agreement.
- 12. Authority to negotiate and enter into Right of Entry/Property Access Agreements to allow prospects to conduct initial investigations regarding any real property managed by the Regional Port.
- 13. Authority to enter into Confidentiality Agreements with prospective businesses, only when absolutely necessary and subject to legal counsel review. Board shall be notified when said agreements are signed.
- 14. Authority to manage Pangborn Airport Terminal Building Parking Lot consistent with Board policies including waiving late fees.

IV. POLICY GOVERNING LEASE SURETY, SURETY BONDS, RENTAL DEPOSITS, AND INSURANCE POLICIES

- A. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to take all necessary actions on behalf of the Board in connection with lease surety, lease surety bonds, rental deposits, or insurance coverage required pursuant to any leases of the Port Authority, including any of the following actions:
 - 1. Where the lease is not in default, to release any surety, surety bond, or rental deposit where an adequate substitute surety or rental deposit has been provided.
 - 2. To approve any surety, surety bond, rental deposit, certificate of insurance, or insurance policies submitted in fulfillment of the requirements of any lease, including substitute or replacement coverage for any terminated bond, surety, or rental insurance.
 - 3. To approve any substitute or modifications of surety or insurance coverage, and to release any surety or insurance company when substitute or replacement insurance coverage has been provided in connection with any outstanding lease of the Port Authority.

V. <u>POLICY GOVERNING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 'S AUTHORITY FOR</u> <u>PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS AND SALES</u>

- A. <u>Property Acquisitions</u> When the Board authorizes the acquisition of real property by negotiated purchase or condemnation and has entered an agreement, the Chief Executive Officer shall take all necessary steps, including appraisals, environmental assessments, and surveys, if necessary, and signing all necessary documents to secure title of such property for the Port Authority consistent with the purchase and sale agreement.
- B. <u>Property Sales</u> When the Board authorizes the sale of Port Authority real property and has entered an agreement, the Chief Executive Officer shall take all necessary steps to complete the transaction, including but not limited to ordering appraisals, surveys and accepting deposits, opening escrow and signing all necessary documents consistent with the purchase and sale agreement.
- C. <u>Amendments</u> When the Board has entered a purchase and sale agreement, the Chief Executive Officer may approve minor modifications to the agreement, including but not limited to extensions to feasibility periods, changes to the closing date, minor modifications in the legal description based on survey or title work, and the like; provided that any modification of the price at which property is sold or purchased shall be approved by the Board.

VI. <u>POLICY GOVERNING CONTRACTS FOR PERFORMANCE OF PUBLIC WORK</u> (INCLUDING UNIT PRICED CONTRACTS) AND PURCHASED SERVICES

- A. <u>Public Work of \$50,000 or less</u> The Chief Executive Officer may, without prior Board approval, approve plans, specifications and estimates, seek bids and execute small works roster contracts up to \$50,000 per project subject to the project appearing as a line item capital project in the Port Authority budget or within the overall capital budget authorized limits established by the Board, and so long as all statutory procedures are followed.
- B. <u>Public Work between \$50,001 and \$350,000</u> The Chief Executive Officer may, without prior Board approval, approve plans, specifications and estimates, and seek bids on public works contracts (including small works roster contracts) between \$50,001 and \$350,000 per project subject to the project appearing as a line item capital project in the Port Authority budget or within the overall capital budget authorized limits established by the Board, and so long as all statutory procedures are followed. Board approval shall be required for awarding said contracts.
- C. <u>Public Work in Excess of \$350,001</u> For projects estimated to cost in excess of \$350,001, Board authorization to proceed shall be obtained prior to seeking bids. In this event, the Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority to approve plans, specifications and estimates associated with the project. Board approval shall be required for awarding contracts.

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2023-14 Delegation of Authority 2024

- D. <u>Project Close Out</u>. For all public work contracts entered by the Port Authority, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to take all further steps to see the project through to completion including final acceptance, provided that all requirements of RCW 53.08.120-135 and all other applicable laws and Port Authority policies are met.
- E. <u>Emergency Public Works Contracts</u> When any emergency shall require the immediate execution of a contract for work, the Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to the Procedures of RCW 39.04.020 and 39.04.280 (as it may be amended or succeeded), is authorized to make a finding of the existence of such emergency and execute any contracts necessary to respond to the existing emergency, provided that the Chief Executive Officer shall, at the first Board meeting following the Chief Executive Officer 's finding of the existence of an emergency, request Board ratification of the finding of emergency and any contracts awarded and/or executed pursuant to that finding. From the inception of any such emergency, the Chief Executive Officer shall continuously advise the Board of the development of the emergency situation and the progress of any contracts executed to remedy the emergency.
- F. <u>Change Orders</u> Where contracts for the performance of work have been awarded and under which the work is in progress, and individual changes in plans and/or specifications are necessitated in order to properly accomplish the work, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute individual change orders to the contract provided:
 - 1. The original contract value is under \$50,000.
 - 2. Or the following conditions are met:
 - a. Change orders are within the project budget established by the Board.
 - b. The contract provides for issuance of change orders.
 - c. The individual change order has been approved and certified by the project architect or engineer as being necessary to the proper accomplishment of the work called for in the basic contract.
 - d. Any time extension for completion of said contract which accompanies said change order does not exceed sixty (60) days.

VII. <u>POLICY GOVERNING ACQUISITION OF MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, AND</u> <u>SUPPLIES</u>

A. The Chief Executive Officer shall have the responsibility for following all required statutory procedures, where applicable, in connection with (i) all contracts for the acquisition of utilities, materials, equipment, and supplies . Where utilities, materials, equipment, and supplies are acquired on the open market or pursuant to published prices or tariffs and used or are necessary in normal maintenance and operations of the Port Authority, no prior approval shall be required but where appropriate shall be approved as a part of normal monthly expenses. The Chief Executive Officer may execute contracts for

the acquisition of utilities, materials, equipment, and supplies subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The contract or purchase order price does not exceed Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) in a calendar year, or if specifically identified in the annual budget, the amount shown in such budget, and the contract provides for a term of no more than three years, with an option to extend the contract for one (1) additional year, provided that the basic contract or purchase order price and any contract extensions must be within appropriate annual budget limits.
- 2. Unless otherwise required by law, the Chief Executive Officer shall determine whether and to what extent a performance bond is necessary.
- B. <u>Emergency Contracts for Acquisition of Materials, Equipment, Supplies, and Services</u> When an emergency shall require the immediate acquisition of materials, equipment, supplies, and services, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to make a finding of the existence of such emergency and execute any contract for acquisition of materials, equipment, supplies, and services necessary to respond to the existing emergency, provided that the Chief Executive Officer shall, at the first Board meeting following the Chief Executive Officer's finding of the existence of an emergency, request Board ratification of the finding of an emergency and any contract awarded or executed pursuant to the authority herein shall contain a clause which states that the contract is subject to ratification by the Board and that if ratification does not follow, the contract shall terminate, and the Contractor shall be compensated for his work and materials used to the time of termination.
- C. <u>Repair and Maintenance of Equipment</u> The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for equipment repair and maintenance and, to that end, may use the Port Authority's own labor forces or may have work done by contract. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to expend such funds as are reasonable and necessary to keep the equipment in good order and repair.

VIII. COMPETITIVE BIDDING REQUIREMENTS - EXEMPTIONS (See RCW 39.04.280)

The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to waive competitive bidding requirements for contracts for:

- 1. Purchases, public works, or services that are clearly and legitimately limited to a single source of supply.
- 2. Purchases, public works, or services involving special facilities or market conditions.
- 3. Purchases of insurance or bonds.
- 4. Public works or services in the event of an emergency.

When the competitive bidding requirements are waived, the Chief Executive Officer shall require documentation be filed and provided to Board of Directors stating the nature of the purchase of work, and the justification for determining the exemption criteria was met. The documentation must be available for public inspection.

IX. ARCHITECTURAL, ENGINEERING, TECHNICAL SERVICES, AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES INCLUDING SURVEYORS, INTERIOR DESIGNERS AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to contract with qualified architectural, engineering, technical testing and inspection firms, surveyors, interior designers and landscape architects, licensed in the State of Washington to provide such services as required for architectural or engineering work or small projects of the Port Authority. Selection and reimbursement for such services including task orders shall follow all required statutory procedures and shall be consistent with normal established fees paid for such services. The Chief Executive Officer may arrange for such services following a competitive selection process; provided the fee to the same firm on any single project or closely related work does not exceed the amount of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000), and the funds are within the approved project capital budget. Board approval shall be required for contracts exceeding \$50,000. Board authorization to proceed shall be obtained prior to seeking qualifications for contracts estimated over \$100,000.

X. <u>AMENDMENTS TO ARCHITECTURAL, ENGINEERING, PROFESSIONAL,</u> <u>CONSULTANT AND PERSONAL SERVICES</u>:

Where services are formally approved by the Board, increases in the approved contract amount may be approved by the Chief Executive Officer without prior approval of the Board for amounts not to exceed 10% of the last Board approved total, or \$50,000, whichever is less, provided the funds are within the approved appropriate annual budget.

XI. PERSONAL SERVICES

The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for obtaining personal services where deemed necessary in carrying out normal Port Authority operations and provided all applicable legal requirements are met. The Chief Executive Officer shall follow Port Authority policies governing management of personal service contracts currently in existence or hereafter adopted.

XII. LITIGATION

- A. <u>Management and Supervision of Litigations</u> The Chief Executive Officer and the Port Authority's Legal Counsel (appointed by the Board) shall be responsible for the procedures necessary for management and supervision of all litigation in which the Port Authority has an interest, direct or indirect. For purposes of this section, "litigation" shall mean the assertion or potential assertion of any position, right or responsibility by or against the Port Authority, including actions which have been filed in any court or any quasijudicial or administrative forum.
- B. <u>Special Legal Services</u> The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to retain such other special counsel at fees as may be negotiated to assist in the handling of any claims, litigation, or other matters necessary to attend to the legal affairs of the Port Authority, within overall budgetary constraints.

- C. <u>Engagement of Experts</u> The Chief Executive Officer may engage or cause to be engaged, such experts as may be necessary for the orderly support of claims or litigation in which the Port Authority has a direct or indirect interest, without limitations otherwise prescribed in this resolution. Such engagement shall be upon consultation given by Legal Counsel after having satisfied him/her that such expenditure is necessary to the adequate preparation and representation of the Port Authority's position in such litigation or claim and shall, wherever practicable, include evaluation of the litigation or claim and an estimate of the probable cost of such experts.
- D. <u>Commencing Lawsuits</u> The Chief Executive Officer may not commence litigation without the prior approval of the Board.

XIII. <u>POLICY GOVERNING ADJUSTMENT AND WRITE-OFF OF ACCOUNTS</u> <u>RECEIVABLE</u>

- A. <u>Definition of "Write Off"</u> The term "write-off" means the adjustment of the accounting records of the Port Authority to reflect the fact that the account is uncollectible in the normal course of operations. The Chief Executive Officer may authorize Legal Counsel to initiate or continue with legal action to collect an account without regard to whether the account has been written off the accounting records of the Port Authority.
- B. <u>Procedures</u> The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to establish procedures for and to write off any uncollectible account which does not exceed the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000) subject to the following general guidelines:
 - 1. Prior to writing off any account receivable or uncollectible, the Chief Executive Officer shall be satisfied that every reasonable effort has been made by the Port Authority to accomplish the collection of the account.
 - 2. Any account in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000) which is deemed to be uncollectible shall be referred to the Board for final write-off, with the exception of any account that has filed for bankruptcy which the Chief Executive Officer may write off up to \$25,000 per account without prior Board approval.
 - 3. The Chief Executive Officer shall provide the Board once per month a listing of all accounts that are 90 days past due.

XIV. <u>POLICY GOVERNING TRAVEL OF EMPLOYEES AND OTHER AUTHORIZED</u> <u>REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PORT AUTHORITY</u>

A. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to approve travel by employees and/or other authorized representatives of the Port Authority in order to effectuate necessary Port Authority operations, in conformity to the travel policy adopted by the Board (Motion #08-04-23 as may be amended, provided that the travel expenses are within the annual budget approved by the Board and provided that the Board shall be advised prior to all international travel (excluding Canada). Board travel outside of the Pacific Northwest (Washington, Oregon and Idaho) shall be approved, in advance, at an open public meeting; provided, however, the Chief Executive Officer may authorize such travel in the event of unique or unanticipated circumstances and obtaining advance approval of the Board is not possible. In this event, the Chief Executive Officer shall notify the entire Board at the next Board meeting.

XV. POLICY GOVERNING STAFF AND EMPLOYEE ADMINISTRATION

A. The Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority to manage all personnel matters for Port Authority employees and staff which include hiring, firing, training, grievance procedures, employee benefits, and administration of the employee salary schedule. The Chief Executive Officer shall carry out these responsibilities according to guidelines and policies to be established by the Chief Executive Officer and within overall budgetary constraints. The Chief Executive Officer shall also carry out these responsibilities consistent with the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Personnel Policies as adopted by the Board.

XVI. UTILIZATION OF PORT AUTHORITY EMPLOYEES

- A. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to use necessary Port Authority employees for operations and maintenance of facilities.
- B. The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for obtaining prior Board approval for work projects which are new construction or major modifications of Port Authority facilities to be carried out by Port Authority crews when the total estimated cost of materials exceeds Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000).

XVII. RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to adopt any administrative rule or regulation necessary for the efficient operation of the Port Authority so long as such rules and regulations are reported to the Board.

XVIII. POLICY GOVERNING SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY

- A. <u>Sale of Property Pursuant to RCW 53.08.090</u> The Chief Executive Officer is authorized, pursuant to RCW 53.08.090, to sell and convey surplus personal property of the Port Authority subject to the following conditions:
 - 1. That the market value of such personal property does not exceed \$10,000 as may be increased by the statute; and
 - 2. That prior to any such sale or conveyance, the Chief Executive Officer shall itemize and list the property to be sold and make written certification to the Board that the listed property is no longer needed for Port Authority purposes;
 - 3. That offers for purchase are solicited from at least three (3) parties whenever possible or placed in a public auction;

- 4. That any large block of such property having a value in excess of \$10,000 shall not be divided into components of a lesser value and sold unless done so by public competitive bid; and
- 5. That in no case shall surplus personal property be sold to any Port Authority official or employee or members of their families without the specific approval of the Board.

XIX. INSURANCE PROGRAMS

Comprehensive General Liability, Auto, Property, Public Officials, etc. al.

The Chief Executive Officer shall be authorized to negotiate and obtain appropriate policies of insurance to cover Port Authority Property, liability, employee coverage, and other areas appropriately included within a comprehensive insurance program. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to approve changes or modifications within the policies of insurance, including programs to provide self-insurance or deductible provisions, so long as such programs are promptly and regularly reported to the Board so it is kept informed of basic changes made in the overall insurance program of the Port Authority. The Board has the responsibility for selecting the Port Authority's insurance broker/agent.

Health Insurance

The Board has the responsibility for determining each year health benefits that will be offered to Port Authority employees. Once benefits are determined by the Board, the Chief Executive Officer shall be authorized to negotiate and execute all agreements and instruments necessary to carry out that determination.

XX. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS

The Chief Executive Officer is authorized, consistent with statutory limitations, to develop and carry out economic development programs and enter economic development agreements consistent with the budget. Economic development programs may include advertising (including the use of advertising firms within budgetary authority), and promotion of the Port Authority, including its properties, facilities and services. Such economic development programs shall be reviewed by the Board from time to time.

XXI. CHELAN AIRPORT

The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to work with the City of Chelan on all matters involving the jointly owned City of Chelan Airport consistent with the Joint Operating Agreement between the parties.

XXII. ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING SERVICES

Subject to Section 4(X), the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to retain necessary services from recognized accounting and auditing firms. Such services may include the comprehensive annual financial report, audits, and appropriate accounting services as required, at established rates for such services in the area.

XXIII. REIMBURSABLE SERVICES

The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to enter into agreements pursuant to which the Port Authority will provide reimbursable services, when such services are part of normal Port Authority operations or incident thereto.

XXIV. GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS CONTRACTS

The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to enter into governmental affairs contracts subject to said expense appearing in the budget and subject to each individual contract not exceeding \$7,500 per month, not including reimbursable expenses.

XXV. ABSENCE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In addition to any other authority expressly delegated herein to the Director of Finance and Administration, in the absence of the Chief Executive Officer, the Director of Finance and Administration shall have all of the authority set forth in this Resolution. When relying on this Article XXIV, the Director of Finance and Administration shall notify the President of the Board as soon as reasonably possible of the exercise of any delegated authority.

XXVI. BOARD RETAINED AUTHORITY

Except as specifically set forth by the Board in the preceding portion of this Resolution, or unless specifically set forth by the Board in the preceding portion of this Resolution, or unless specifically authorized by other action of the Board, the Board shall retain the following authority:

a. To approve leases, contracts, purchases, change orders, and other agreements exceeding the delegation set forth above;

- b. To borrow funds;
- c. To establish levy rates;

d. To oversee the work of the internal auditor and legal counsel;

e. To establish levels of compensation and adjustments, including benefits, for the Chief Executive Officer;

f. To approve check registers, budgets, and amendments thereto (including line-item adjustments);

g. To determine and establish the direction, goals, and policies of the Port Authority, unless specific direction for the determination or implementation has been given to the Chief Executive Officer or to others;

h. To change the duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer at any time by the specific action of the Board, including amendment or modification to this Resolution; and

i. To delegate specific authority, whether or not described herein, to a Board Member or another employee of the Port Authority, by motion made and approved at an open public meeting (e.g. delegating authority to a Board Member to approve any changes made to an agreement that has been approved by the Board; delegating signature authority to a Port Authority employee overseeing a particular project).

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority this 19th day of December 2023, and duly authenticated in open session by the signatures of the Board of Directors voting in favor thereof.

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY

Donn Etherington, Director

120 PC

Richard DeRock, Director

JC Baldwin, Director

W. Alan Loebsack, Director

Mark Spurgeon, Director

Jim Huffman Director

CDRPA RESOLUTION NO. 2023-15

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVING THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POLICY

Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority has the statutory authority to adopt from time to time resolutions authorizing the investment of Port funds which are not required for immediate expenditures and which are in the custody of the port treasurer and to specify, subject to statutory constraints, permitted investment of said funds;

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority hereby adopts the following investment policy to govern investment of Port funds not needed for immediate expenditure and authorizes the investment of such funds by the port treasurer in accordance with the terms and provisions of this resolution.

The port treasurer is charged with the responsibility of preparing for the Board of Directors and CEO quarterly reports on investment activity and yields. Such reports shall contain a summary of the type of investments, amount of investments, place of investments, term of investments and yield.

This resolution is effective as of January 1, 2024 and shall terminate on December 31, 2024.

Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority at a regular meeting thereof held this 19th day of December, 2023.

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY

Donn Etherington, Director

Richard DeRock, Director

JC/ Baldwin, Director

W. Alan Loebsack, Director

Mark Spurgeon, Director

Jim Huffman, Director



Investment Policy

Effective from January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024

Adopted by the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board of Directors on December 19th, 2023.

Investment Policy

I. POLICY

1.1 Policy

II. SCOPE & OBJECTIVES

- 2.1 Scope
- 2.2 Objectives

III. STANDARDS OF CARE

- 3.1 Prudence
- 3.2 Delegation of Authority
- 3.3 Ethics & Conflict of Interest

IV. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS, DIVIERSIFICATION, MATURITIES AND COLLATERALIZATION

- 4.1 Authorized Investments
- 4.2 Diversification
- 4.3 Maturities

V. DEALERS, INSTITUTIONS, SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY, INTERNAL & EXTERNAL CONTROL

- 5.1 Authorized Financial Dealers & Institutions
- 5.2 Safekeeping and Custody
- 5.3 Internal Control
- 5.4 External Control

VI. PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT & REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

- 6.1 Performance Standards
- 6.2 Reporting

VII. POLICY ADOPTION

7.1 Investment Policy Adoption

I. POLICY

1.1 Policy:

It is the policy of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority to invest public funds in a manner which will provide the market rate of return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands on the Treasury and conforming to all Washington statutes governing the investment of public funds.

The purpose of this Investment Policy is to establish the investment objectives, delegation of authority, standards of prudence, eligible investments and transactions, internal controls, reporting requirements and custodial procedures necessary for the prudent management and investment of the funds of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority.

II. SCOPE AND OBJECTIVES

2.1 Scope:

This investment policy applies to all financial investment assets and managed assets of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority. Investment assets are accounted for in the Port Authority's Annual Financial Report.

2.2 Objectives:

The primary objectives, in priority order, of the Port Authority's investment activities shall be legality, safety, liquidity, and return:

Legality of Investments:

The Port Authority's investment holdings shall be in conformance with federal, state and other legal requirements.

Safety:

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the Investment Policy of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority. Investments of the Port Authority shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. To attain this objective, diversification is required in order that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfolio.

Liquidity:

The Port Authority's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the Port Authority to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably anticipated.

Return on Investment:

The Port Authority's investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the Port Authority's investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.

III. STANDARDS OF CARE

3.1 Prudence:

Investments shall be made with judgment and care - under circumstances then prevailing - which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent person" and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

3.2 Delegation of Authority:

Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to the Director of Finance & Administration serving as the Port Authority's Treasurer, who shall establish written procedures for the operation of the investment program, consistent with the investment policy. Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to persons responsible for investment transactions. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Director of Finance & Administration. The procedures will be periodically reviewed and updated at the direction of the Director of Finance & Administration.

3.3 Ethics and Conflict of Interest:

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose to the Chief Executive Officer any material financial interests in financial institutions that conduct business within this jurisdiction, and they shall further disclose any large personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the Port Authority's portfolio.

IV. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS, DIVERSIFICATION, MATURITIES AND COLLATERALIZATION

4.1 Authorized Investments:

All municipal corporations in Washington State, including the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, are empowered by statute to invest in the following securities: (The enabling legislation is RCW 39.58 and, as amended, RCW's 53.36, 39.58, 39.59, 39.60, 43.84.080 and 43.250). The Port Authority has chosen to limit the authorized investments to the following:

1) Investment deposits including certificates of deposit, with qualified public depositories.

2) Certificates, notes, or bonds of the United States, or other obligations of the United States or its agencies, or of any corporation wholly owned by the government of the United States.

3) Obligations of government-sponsored enterprises which are eligible as collateral for advances to member banks as determined by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. (These include but are not limited to Federal Home Loan Bank notes and bonds, Federal National Mortgage Association notes, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and Federal Farm Credit Bank bonds.)

4) Corporate notes purchased on the secondary market provided that the Director of Finance and Administration adheres with the policies and procedures of the State Investment Board regarding corporate notes.

5) Bankers' acceptances purchased on the secondary market which have at the time of investment the highest credit rating by a minimum of two recognized rating agencies.

6) Commercial Paper provided that the Director of Finance & Administration adheres with the policies and procedures of the State Investment Board regarding commercial paper (RCW 43.84.080(7)).

7) Bonds of the State of Washington and any local government in the State of Washington, which bonds have at the time of investment one of the three highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

8) General obligation bonds of a state other than the State of Washington and general obligation bonds of a local government of a state other than the State of Washington, which bonds have at the time of investment one of the three highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

9) State Investment Pool - As prescribed by the RCW code, the legislation has provided for a mechanism whereby political subdivisions may, at their option, utilize the resources of the State Treasurer (OST) to maximize the potential surplus funds while ensuring the safety of public funds. A state investment pool has been designated to meet this function.

4.2 Diversification:

The Port will diversify its investments by security type and institution. The constraints will provide for a disciplined guide in making investment decisions.

Diversification Constraints:

ISSUER TYPE	% of TOTAL PORTFOLIO	
Local Government Investment Pool		100%
US Treasury Obligations		100%
Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE's)		100%
Callable issues	up to	50%
Corporate Bonds		20%
Certificates of Deposit/Bank Deposits/Saving		75%
Obligations of the State of Washington		50%

4.3 Maturities:

The Port Authority will invest in securities with maturity dates five (5) years from the date of purchase or less.

The maximum weighted maturity (modified duration) of the total portfolio shall not exceed 3.0 years. This maximum is established to limit the portfolio to excessive price change exposure.

Liquidity funds will be held in the State Pool, bank deposits or in money market instruments maturing in six months or less.

The investment portfolio will have securities that mature between 1 day and 5 years.

Exception to 5-year-maturity maximum: The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority may invest in securities exceeding five (5) years if the maturities of such investments are made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds or where deferred payment to the Port Authority are matched to the maturity date.

V. DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS, SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY, INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL CONTROL

5.1 Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions:

The Director of Finance & Administration will limit banking transactions to designated banking relationships and will refer to the financial institutions list provided by the Public Deposit Commission of banks authorized to provide investment services (RCW 39.58.080).

In addition, the Port Authority will approve security broker/dealers by credit worthiness and understanding of the Port Authority's requirements and policy. These may include "primary" dealers or regional dealers that qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission Rule 15c3-1 (Uniform Net Capital Rule). No public deposit shall be made except in a qualified public depository in the State of Washington.

A current financial statement is required to be on file for each broker/dealer with which the Port Authority invests.

5.2 Safekeeping and Custody:

All security transactions entered into by the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. Securities will be held by a third-party custodian designated by the Director of Finance & Administration and approved by the State Treasurer.

5.3 Internal Control:

The Director of Finance & Administration shall establish a process of periodic review by the Accounting/Finance Staff. This review will provide internal control monitoring by assuring that policies and procedures are being complied with.

5.4 External Control:

The Director of Finance & Administration may engage the services of outside professionals as necessary for the efficient management of the investment program. External service providers shall be subject to the provisions of this Investment Policy.

VI. PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Performance Standards:

The Port Authority's investment portfolio will be designed to obtain a market average rate of return during budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the Port Authority's investment risk constraints and cash flow needs. A market benchmark may be utilized and will be established through the Director of Finance & Administration. The return shall be based on the net yield after accounting for the amortization of the discounts or premiums paid.

6.2 Reporting:

The Director of Finance & Administration shall provide the Board of Directors with consistent periodic reporting. These reports shall provide an accurate and meaningful representation of the investment portfolio, its performance versus the established benchmark, and proof of compliance with the investment policy. At a minimum these reports will be presented quarterly, and such reports will include:

- Total investment portfolio yield and earnings rate.
- Percentage of the portfolio in each investment category.
- Summary of securities by investment type held at the end of the reporting period.
- Average term and yield by investment type.
- Investment yield comparison to various benchmarks.

VII. POLICY ADOPTION

7.1 Investment Policy Adoption:

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of the Board of Directors. The policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis and any modifications made thereto must be approved by the Board of Directors.

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY **OWNERSHIP ALLOCATION MEMO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED AFTER JANUARY 1, 2020** DOUGLAS COUNTY, WA PARCEL #22210840005 (Lytle)

On November 12, 2019, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board of Directors adopted a policy governing capital investments. Section 3 of that policy states that if there is an acquisition of real property after January 1, 2020, the Board of Directors is required to adopt an Ownership Allocation Memo as a means to allocate respective ownership interests in the property in the event of a dissolution.

The Board of Directors approved the purchase of approximately 4.76 acres of real property from Christopher Lytle adjacent to the Airport, and within the Airport Runway Protection Zone. identified as Douglas County, WA Assessor's Tax Parcel Number 22210840005. Funds held by the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority were used for the entirety of the purchase at \$285,600.00. Neither the Port of Chelan nor the Port of Douglas issued separate debt or entered into a joint financing plan for the capital purchase.

Because the source of funds for the purchase was not directly from either port district, the real estate will be owned by the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority.

In the event of dissolution of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, the parcel will be allocated to the two Port Districts based on the percentage of 2023 budgeted tax receipts, which calculates to 25% ownership by the Port of Douglas and 75% ownership by the Port of Chelan.

However, in the event the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority is able to secure a Federal Aviation Administration grant to reimburse the Regional Port for 90% of the acquisition cost, then ownership percentages shall be 50% by the Port of Douglas and 50% by the Port of Chelan.

Signed and dated this 19th day of December, 2023.

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY

Etherington.

Richard DeRock, Director

Director

oebsack. Director

Mark Spurgeon, Director

Jim Huffman, Director

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Lytle Property Ownership Allocation Memo

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY OWNERSHIP ALLOCATION MEMO ADCOCK PROPERTY ACQUISITION **REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED AFTER JANUARY 1, 2020** CHELAN COUNTY, WA PARCEL #222135240100

On November 12, 2019, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board of Directors adopted a policy governing capital investments. Section 3 of the policy addresses real property acquired after January 1, 2020. Under that section, the Board of Directors is required to adopt in advance an Ownership Allocation Memo as a means to allocate the percentage ownership of real property.

The Board of Directors has an interest in purchasing the Terence and Mary Adcock property located in Malaga, Washington with a parcel number of 222135240100. The property encompasses approximately 15.83 acres with an anticipated acquisition price of \$1,038,950.

Because this property is located within Chelan County and the Port of Chelan County has the financial resources to acquire the property using its own resources, the Board hereby approves the acquisition of 100% of the Terence and Mary Adcock property by the Port of Chelan County.

Once acquired, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority shall manage the Terence and Mary Adcock property pursuant to and consistent with CDRPA Resolution No. 2020-02.

Board approved and signed this 19th day of December, 2023.

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY

Donn Etherington, Director

Richard DeRock, Director

JC Baldwin, Director

W. Alan Loebsack, Director

Mark Spurgeon, Director

Jim Huffman, Director